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Germantown
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Germantown. The Kempers were
the first to leave, taking up a large
grant on Great Run, known as
‘Cedar Grove' (now called
‘Clovelly’).

The Weavers, Holtzclaws and
Rectors moved further toward the
mountains in upper Fauquier. The
entrepreneur of the Germantown
migrants was John Rector.

In 1731, Charles Burgess of
Lancaster County received a grant
for 13,000 acres. This vast tract
extended from the present town of
Marshall to Rt. 50 and from Goose
Creek to Little River. He died in
1732 and the tract was inherited
by his two daughters, whose sons,
Captains Burgess Ball and
Burgess Smith divided the tract.

They sold a major portion of
their holdings to John Rector.
After establishing himself, his
family and his Germantown
relatives and friends, Mr. Rector
divided the tract into lots, almost
square, of about 200 acres each. In
1772 Rector had the General
Assembly establish Fauquier’s
oldest incorporated town which he
called Maidstone, after the village
in the County of Kent, England,
the home of Thomas Lord Fairfax.
However, the inhabitants
persisted in referring to the town
as “Rector’s Town” and the name

stuck.

All these first colonists belonged
to the German Reformed Church,
the great German branch of the
Presbyterian tamily of churches.

When they left Siegen,—their
Pastor, Rev. Henry Hauger,
accompanied them. He was a well
educated man who lived to a great
age, dying in 1737. After Pastor
Hauger’s death, Jacob Holtzclaw
read the lessons in German and
taught the school at Germantown.
Unable to secure the services of
another Reformed minister, the
people became allied with the

Baptists, Methodists and
Presbyterians.
John  Rector supposedly

established a Reformed church at
Rectortown but, by 1781, after at
least two visits by Bishop Asbury,
the Methodist Church had been
established.

After the Revolution, in which
cause the Germantown families
were well represented, the lure of
the western lands was too much to
resist. Representatives of the 12
Rectortown families have settled
in every state of the Union,
making worthy contributions
wherever they resided in polities,
education, the ministry and
business.

In 1956 a memorial foundation
was incorporated as the Memorial
Foundation of the Germanna

Colonies in Virginia. It is a non-
profit organization to collect and
publish information relating to the
Germanna Colonies, to acquire and
develop property suitable for
preserving historical sites and
interest, and to aid in bringing
together the descendants of the
pioneer colonists.

The Corporation once owned 270
acres, ‘Siegen Forest’, of the
original Germanna tract.
Approximately 100 acres of this
was given in 1969 to the State of
Virginia for the erection of the
Germanna Community College. By
authority of the Virginia State
Highway Commission, Route 3,
from Culpeper to Fredericksburg
in 1959 was designated
GERMANNA HIGHWAY. This
highway borders ‘Siegen Forest’
and traverses the area where the
first colony of 1714 was settled by
Governor Spotswood.

The annual meeting of the
Memorial Foundation of the
Germanna Colonies, Inc., is held at
‘Siegen Forest’ the third Sunday in
July each year. All members and
interested persons are invited to
come and bring a picnic
lunch. — John Gott

Annual
Meeting

Seventy-tfive members and
guests attended the annual
meeting of The Fauquier Historical
Society on Wednesday, June 17, at
Airlie.

After an excellent dinner a short
business meeting was called to
order by President Dr. Robert
Anderson, Jr.

After the reading of the
treasurer’s report, Meade Palmer,
nominating committee chairman,
presented a slate of candidates for
the Board of Directors. New board
members elected were: John H.
Bartenstein, Warrenton; Mrs.
Lewis F. Lee, Jr., The Plains; and
John K. Gott, Arlington.

Nominated for reelection to the
Board were: Jennings H. Flathers,

Gainesville; Thomas D. Jones,
Warrenton; Charles H. Harris,
Warrenton.
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